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E.O. 13783. On April 16, 2021, Secretary 
Haaland rescinded the Zinke Order 
through Secretary’s Order 3398 
(Haaland Order) but did not reinstate 
the Federal coal leasing moratorium. 

On August 12, 2022, the Court 
vacated and remanded the EA and 
associated FONSI and reinstated ‘‘[t]he 
coal leasing program moratorium 
established by the Jewell Order until the 
completion of sufficient NEPA review 
analyzing revocation of the 
moratorium.’’ That court ruling was the 
impetus for publishing the BLM’s NOI 
to prepare an EIS to analyze the 
potential environmental effects from 
maintaining Secretary Jewell’s coal 
leasing moratorium on May 1, 2023 (88 
FR 26588). 

In October 2022, Intervenor- 
Defendants appealed the decision to the 
U.S. Court of Appeals for the Ninth 
Circuit. On February 21, 2024, the Ninth 
Circuit ruled that the District Court’s 
ruling was incorrect, that the Haaland 
Order definitively revoked the Zinke 
Order in its entirety, and that the repeal 
of the Zinke Order is enough to render 
the case moot and appropriate for 
dismissal. For those reasons, the Ninth 
Circuit vacated and remanded the 
District Court decision with instructions 
to dismiss the case as moot. As a result, 
there is no Jewell Order coal leasing 
moratorium in effect to analyze, and the 
BLM is rescinding the Notice of Intent 
to prepare an EIS and is terminating the 
EIS announced in the Federal Register 
at 88 FR 26588. 
(Authority: 40 CFR 1501.9) 

Mitchell Leverette, 
Acting Assistant Director, Energy, Minerals, 
and Realty Management. 
[FR Doc. 2025–06388 Filed 4–14–25; 8:45 am] 
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SUMMARY: Notice is hereby given that 
the U.S. International Trade 
Commission (‘‘Commission’’) has 
determined to issue a general exclusion 
order (‘‘GEO’’) prohibiting the 

importation of products containing 
tirzepatide and products purporting to 
contain tirzepatide that infringe U.S. 
Trademark No. 6,809,369 or include a 
false designation of origin; a limited 
exclusion order (‘‘LEO’’) prohibiting the 
entry of falsely advertised products 
containing tirzepatide and products 
purporting to contain tirzepatide that 
are imported by or on behalf of certain 
defaulting respondents; and cease and 
desist orders (‘‘CDOs’’) directed against 
certain defaulting respondents. This 
investigation is terminated. 
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: 
Ronald A. Traud, Esq., Office of the 
General Counsel, U.S. International 
Trade Commission, 500 E Street SW, 
Washington, DC 20436, telephone (202) 
205–3427. Copies of non-confidential 
documents filed in connection with this 
investigation may be viewed on the 
Commission’s electronic docket (EDIS) 
at https://edis.usitc.gov. For help 
accessing EDIS, please email 
EDIS3Help@usitc.gov. General 
information concerning the Commission 
may also be obtained by accessing its 
internet server at https://www.usitc.gov. 
Hearing-impaired persons are advised 
that information on this matter can be 
obtained by contacting the 
Commission’s TDD terminal on (202) 
205–1810. 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: The 
Commission instituted this investigation 
on November 27, 2023, based upon a 
complaint filed on behalf of Eli Lilly 
and Company of Indianapolis, Indiana 
(‘‘Lilly’’). 88 FR 82914–15 (Nov. 27, 
2023). The complaint, as supplemented, 
alleges violations of section 337 based 
upon the importation into the United 
States, the sale for importation, and the 
sale within the United States after 
importation of certain products 
containing tirzepatide or purporting to 
contain tirzepatide by reason of false 
designation of source and false and 
misleading advertising, the threat or 
effect of which is to destroy or 
substantially injure an industry in the 
United States, and by reason of 
infringement of U.S. Trademark No. 
6,809,369. Id. The complaint also 
alleges that a domestic industry exists 
pursuant to subsection (a)(2) of section 
337. Id. The Commission’s notice of 
investigation named as respondents 
Arctic Peptides LLC of Akeny, Iowa 
(‘‘Arctic Peptides’’); Audrey Beauty Co. 
of Hong Kong, China (‘‘Audrey 
Beauty’’); Biolabshop Limited of 
Lancaster, United Kingdom 
(‘‘Biolabshop’’); Mew Mews Company 
Limited of Hong Kong, China (‘‘Mew 
Mews’’); Strate Labs LLC of Spring, 
Texas (‘‘Strate Labs’’); Steroide Kaufen 

of Bialystok, Poland (‘‘Steroide 
Kaufen’’); Super Human Store of 
Barcelona, Spain (‘‘SHS’’); Supopeptide 
of Cedar Grove, New Jersey 
(‘‘Supopeptide’’); Triggered 
Supplements LLC (d/b/a The Triggered 
Brand) of Clearwater, Florida 
(‘‘Triggered Brand’’); Unewlife of Cedar 
Grove, New Jersey (‘‘Unewlife’’); and 
Xiamen Austronext Trading Co., Ltd. (d/ 
b/a AustroPeptide) (‘‘AustroPeptide’’) of 
Fujian, China. Id. at 82915. The Office 
of Unfair Import Investigations (‘‘OUII’’) 
is also named as a party in this 
investigation. Id. 

On March 21, 2024, the investigation 
terminated in part with respect to 
respondents Unewlife, Supopeptide, 
and Steroide Kaufen. Order No. 8 (Mar. 
7, 2024), unreviewed by Comm’n Notice 
(Mar. 21, 2024). On May 15, 2024, 
Arctic Peptides, Audrey Beauty, 
Biolabshop, Mew Mews, Strate Labs, 
SHS, Triggered Brand, and 
AustroPeptide were found in default. 
Order No. 10 (Mar. 26, 2024), 
unreviewed by Comm’n Notice (Apr. 22, 
2024). And on May 21, 2024, the 
complaint was amended to add as 
respondents Total Compounding 
Pharmaceuticals of Australia and 
Singularity Marketing Limited (d/b/a 
Swiss Chems) of Hong Kong, China 
(‘‘Swiss Chems’’). Order No. 12 (Apr. 22, 
2024), unreviewed by Comm’n Notice 
(May 21, 2024). On June 13, 2024, the 
complaint was further amended to add 
as a respondent Total Compounding 
Pharmaceuticals of Australia. Order No. 
16 (May 8, 2024), unreviewed by 
Comm’n Notice (June 13, 2024). 

On July 12, 2024, Lilly moved for 
summary determination on violation 
based on allegations of trademark 
infringement, false designation of origin, 
and/or false advertising against (1) 
Arctic Peptides, (2) Audrey Beauty, (3) 
Biolabshop, (4) Mew Mews, (5) Strate 
Labs, (6) SHS, (7) Triggered Brand, (8) 
AustroPeptide, (9) GenX Peptides, (10) 
Paradigm Peptides, and (11) Total 
Compounding. On December 6, 2024, 
the ALJ issued Order No. 26, which 
partially granted the motion. See Order 
No. 26 (Dec. 6, 2024). Order No. 26 
granted Lilly’s motion regarding 
trademark infringement as to 
respondents Audrey Beauty, Mew 
Mews, SHS, and Triggered Brand, but 
denied the motion as to GenX Peptides, 
Total Compounding, Paradigm Peptides, 
and Strate Labs. That order also granted 
Lilly’s motion regarding false 
designation of origin as to respondents 
Audrey Beauty, Mew Mews, SHS, 
Triggered Brand, and Strate Labs, but 
denied the motion as to GenX Peptides, 
Total Compounding, Paradigm Peptides, 
and Biolabshop. The order further 
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granted Lilly’s motion as to false 
advertising as to respondents SHS, 
AustroPeptide, and Arctic Peptides, but 
denied the motion as to Total 
Compounding. The order additionally 
found that Lilly is entitled to summary 
determination as to the domestic 
industry requirement. 

Order No. 26 also included a 
preliminary recommendation on remedy 
and bonding (‘‘RD’’), should a violation 
be found. The RD recommended: (1) as 
to Lilly’s trademark infringement and 
false designation of origin allegations, a 
GEO directed to certain products 
containing tirzepatide and products 
purporting to contain tirzepatide 
imported, sold for importation, and/or 
sold after importation; (2) also as to 
Lilly’s trademark infringement and false 
designation of origin allegations and in 
the alternative to a GEO, an LEO 
directed to certain products containing 
tirzepatide and products purporting to 
contain tirzepatide imported, sold for 
importation, and/or sold after 
importation by Audrey Beauty, Mew 
Mews, SHS, Triggered Brand, Strate 
Labs, and AustroPeptide; (3) as to Lilly’s 
false advertising allegations, an LEO 
directed to certain products containing 
tirzepatide and products purporting to 
contain tirzepatide imported, sold for 
importation, and/or sold after 
importation by AustroPeptide and SHS; 
and (4) in addition to either a GEO order 
or LEOs, CDOs directed to Arctic 
Peptides, Triggered Brand, and Strate 
Labs. The RD also recommended that 
the Commission set the bond during the 
Presidential review period at one 
hundred percent (100%) of entered 
value. 

On January 22, 2025, the Commission 
determined not to review Order No. 26. 
Comm’n Notice (Jan. 22, 2025). 

Because Lilly’s motion for summary 
determination was not granted as to all 
issues, the ALJ sought a submission 
from the parties regarding any further 
necessary proceedings. See Order No. 27 
(Dec. 6, 2024), unreviewed by Comm’n 
Notice (Jan. 6, 2025). In response, the 
parties provided a joint submission in 
which Lilly indicated that it would seek 
to terminate all claims on which 
summary determination was not 
granted. Then, on December 19, 2024, 
Lilly moved to withdraw the allegations 
remaining before the ALJ as to GenX 
Peptides, Paradigm Peptides, Total 
Compounding, Biolabshop, and Strate 
Labs. On January 10, 2025, the ALJ 
issued an initial determination granting 
Lilly’s motion. See Order No. 29 (Jan. 
10, 2025), unreviewed by Comm’n 
Notice (Jan. 31, 2025). 

The Commission issued a notice 
soliciting comments regarding any 

public interest concerns raised by the 
recommend relief in the RD. See 89 FR 
101048 (Dec. 13, 2024). The 
Commission’s notice received two 
responses in support of the 
recommended relief. Additionally, Lilly 
filed a statement on public interest 
pursuant to Commission Rule 
210.50(a)(4), 19 CFR 210.50(a)(4). 

The Commission requested briefing 
on remedy, bonding, and the public 
interest. Comm’n Notice (Jan. 22, 2024). 
On February 5, 2025, Lilly and OUII 
filed opening submissions. On February 
12, 2025, OUII filed a responsive 
submission. No other party filed a 
submission before the Commission. 

Having reviewed the record of the 
investigation, including the RD and the 
parties’ submissions, the Commission 
has determined that the appropriate 
remedy is: (1) a GEO prohibiting the 
importation of products containing 
tirzepatide and products purporting to 
contain tirzepatide that infringe U.S. 
Trademark No. 6,809,369 and/or 
include a false designation of origin; (2) 
an LEO prohibiting prohibiting the entry 
of falsely advertised products 
containing tirzepatide and products 
purporting to contain tirzepatide that 
are imported by or on behalf of SHS, 
AustroPeptide, and Arctic Peptides; and 
(3) CDOs directed to Arctic Peptides, 
Triggered Brand, and Strate Labs. 

The Commission has further 
determined that the public interest 
factors enumerated in subsections (d)(l) 
and (g)(1) (19 U.S.C. 1337(d)(l), (g)(1)) 
do not preclude issuance of the above 
referenced remedial orders. 
Additionally, the Commission has 
determined to impose a bond of 100% 
of entered value of the covered products 
during the period of Presidential review 
(19 U.S.C. 1337(j)). 

This investigation is terminated. 
The Commission vote for this 

determination took place on April 9, 
2025. 

The authority for the Commission’s 
determination is contained in section 
337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as 
amended (19 U.S.C. 1337), and in Part 
210 of the Commission’s Rules of 
Practice and Procedure (19 CFR part 
210). 

By order of the Commission. 

Issued: April 9, 2025. 

Lisa Barton, 
Secretary to the Commission. 
[FR Doc. 2025–06352 Filed 4–14–25; 8:45 am] 
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SUMMARY: This notice announces the 
Department of Justice’s (‘‘Department’’) 
rescission of its Guidance to Federal 
Financial Assistance Recipients 
Regarding Title VI Prohibition Against 
National Origin Discrimination 
Affecting Limited English Proficient 
Persons, consistent with an Executive 
Order entitled Designating English as 
the Official Language of the United 
States. 

DATES: Applicable March 21, 2025. 
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: 
Federal Coordination and Compliance 
Section, Civil Rights Division, at (202) 
307–2222, Voice/TTY: 1–888–848–5306, 
or via email at FCS.CRT@usdoj.gov. 
Christine Stoneman, Chief, Federal 
Coordination and Compliance Section, 
Civil Rights Division at (202) 305–2222. 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: 

I. Background 

On March 1, 2025, the President 
signed Executive Order (‘‘E.O.’’) 14224, 
Designating English as the Official 
Language of the United States. See 90 
FR 11363 (Mar. 1, 2025). Among other 
things, E.O. 14224 revoked E.O. 13166, 
Improving Access to Services for 
Persons With Limited English 
Proficiency. See 65 FR 50121 (Aug. 16, 
2000); E.O. 14224 (§ 3(b)). E.O. 14224 
also directed the Attorney General to 
‘‘rescind any policy guidance 
documents issued pursuant to Executive 
Order 13166 and provide updated 
guidance, consistent with law.’’ Id. 
(§ 3(c)). 

E.O. 13166 directed ‘‘[e]ach agency 
providing Federal financial assistance 
shall draft title VI guidance specifically 
tailored to its recipients that is 
consistent with the LEP Guidance 
issued by the Department of Justice,’’ 
which were then to be published in the 
Federal Register for public comment. 
E.O. 13166 (§ 3). Title VI of the Civil 
Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C. 2000d 
(Title VI), prohibits discrimination 
against or otherwise excluding 
individuals from programs or activities 
on the basis of race, color, or national 
origin, if those programs or activities 
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